AOM 4 

In the early years of the Provincial Court, the Governor and Secretary presided, occasionally with one or more other justices.

Does the Governor hold the position of Lieutenant General?

Primary Justices:

Leonard Calvert

Thomas Greene

James Neale

Giles Brent 

John Lewger

Mr. Secret (?)

Mr. Surveyor (?)

Mr. Blount

Thomas Gerard

William Brainthwaite

John Langford

AOM 41

By 1650, the customary panel of judges consisted of at least 5, with the Governor and Secretary nearly always present. 

Sometimes justices were also called “commissioners,” and it also appears they functioned as the Governor’s Council.

Quarter Court? Pg. 499

AOM 49

“The justices who served as members of the Provincial Court at the opening of the period covered by this volume were Governor Charles Calvert, later third Lord Baltimore, Philip Calvert, the Chancellor and an uncle of the Governor, Henry Sewell, the Secretary of the Province, Robert Clarke a former Surveyor-General, John Bateman, Baker Brooke, who married a niece of the Lord Proprietary, Jerome White, Henry Coursey, and Edward Lloyd. Bateman  died late in the year 1663 and Clarke in July 1664, and their places were filled by William Evans and Thomas Truman. Henry Sewell went to England in the

summer of 1664 and died soon afterwards. As has already been shown the men who sat on the Provincial Court were the same group that made up the Council and the Upper House.”

AOM 57

xiv

“The members of the Provincial Court and of the Governor's Council at the  beginning of this period, with a notation following each name showing the  years of service, were the following: Governor Charles Calvert (1661-1684),   son of the Lord Proprietary Cecilius Calvert, and later himself third Lord  Baltimore, and Proprietary; Philip Calvert (1660-1682), the Chancellor;  Richard Boughton 11666) of St Mary's County, Provincial Secretary; Jerome  White (1663-1670) of St. Mary's County, Surveyor-General; Edward Lloyd  (1650-1666) of “Wye”, Talbot County; Henry Coursey (1661-1687), also of  Talbot; Baker Brooke (1658-1680), of Calvert; Colonel William Evans (1662-  1669) of St. Mary's; and Thomas Truman (1665-1685), of Calvert.  Richard Boughton appears at only one session, that for June, 1665. Colonel  William Evans last sat at the February, 1668/9, court and died soon after wards. In the spring of 1669 Governor Charles Calvert went to England, not  returning until the close of the following year. In his absence the functions  of the governor were exercised by three deputy governors headed by the  Chancellor, Philip Calvert, with White and Brooke as associates. During this  period Philip Calvert presided in court and in the Council. At the December,  1669, session two new members added to the court were William Calvert (1669- 1682), of St. Mary's  County, the Governor's nephew, and Samuel Chew (1669- 1677) of Anne Arundel; and at the December, 1670, session, William Talbot  (1670-1671) of Baltimore, the new Provincial Secretary, and Edward Fitz-Herbert (1670-1673) of St. Mary's, were sworn in as new members. Coursey  and Lloyd who lived on the Eastern Shore were frequent absentees. Jerome  White went to England soon after the April, 1670, session and did not return.  As far as can be learned, none of these justices had been practicing lawyers,

 except William Calvert, who had been attorney-general and practicing in this

 court for some five years.
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xi

Almost every justice had some independent office, usually an exceedingly well-paid one, and all of them were, in addition, large landholders. Governor Charles Calvert was the son of the Proprietary, and he came in the fulness of time, to be the third Lord Baltimore and the second Proprietary. Philip Calvert, uncle of the Governor, was Chancellor and

Commissary General. Sir William Talbot was secretary of the Province and chief judge for the probate of wills, until June 1673, when his commission was revoked by the Proprietary and his place was taken by William Calvert (post, 118, 234). Baker Erooke was surveyor general. New Members were presumably always sworn in, either as Council members or as justices of the Court, hut the swearing-in is not always recorded. Edward Fitzherbert was sworn in on January 19, 1670/1 (Archives, V, p. 82), but for Jesse Wharton, who appears in court for the first time on December 10, 1672, there is no record of a commission or of an oath-taking. Baker Brooke, the surveyor general, had been a member since 1658, longer than anyone else. Samuel Chew and William Calvert joined the Court on December 14, 1669 (Archives, LVII, p. 481).  Henry Coursey, who had been a member from i66o to 1670, and who became one again in 1676, was not on the court for the period to which this volume relates.

xii

The Court consisted of the Governor and Chief Justice and nine other

           justices, but the sessions were seldom, indeed, never, attended by all the mem

           bers. On one occasion nine in all were present; at no other time were there more

           than six. To constitute a session, there must be at least four members present

           (post, p. 91), of whom one must be a member of the quorum.
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xi

In this period twelve different men served on the court, though in no case were more than four or five of them present at any one time. It took four men to constitute a court, of whom at least one must be of the quorum. Of course it is possible that an absent justice was away on public business; sometimes it is certain that this is the case. Sometimes, too, an Eastern Shore man on the court could not get across the Bay.

MSA#: S 551-11

Page 323-24 details a contemporary description of the Provincial Court and delineates it’s jurisdictional reach.  It also names the chief justice and justices.

MSA#: S 551-19

Page 2:  4 justices sufficient to hold court.

MSA#: S 551-9

Page 345-347:  Quorum justices listed in county court proceeding.  Did they travel to county courts to hear cases?

Does “Commissioner” = Justice, Justice of the Peace?

April 26, 1687, justices ready to hold court, but county sheriffs did not return their writs executed (no service of process).  Sheriffs were fined 1000lbs of tobacco.

“President” is used to indicate the Chief Justice on May 2, 1694 (Nicholas Greenbury).

AOM III, p. 242 16 April 1691

Associators’ Convention appointed:

Nehemiah Blakiston Esqre Chiefe Justice, Coll Henry Jowles Coll George Robotham, Majr Nicholas Greenberry, Mr Thomas Tench, Majr Robt King, Doctr John Brooke Coll Nicholas Gassaway, Mr John Edrnondson, Mr John Adison & Mr Robert Mason,

Terms “Commissioner,” “Justice of the Peace,” and “Justice” are used interchangeablely in the County Court.

S 551-19 p 583 October 6, 1698 “Commissioner of the Peace” is used in County Court

